
 

November 2, 2022 
 
VIA ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION 
 
The Honorable Michael E. Horowitz 
Inspector General 
Department of Justice 
 
Dear Inspector General Horowitz: 
 

On October 5, 2022, I wrote to the Justice Department and FBI with respect to lawful, 
protected whistleblower disclosures provided to my office that included allegations and records 
showing hundreds of FBI employees retired or resigned because of sexual misconduct 
allegations against them and that they did so in order to avoid accountability.  The allegations 
and records paint a disgraceful picture of abuse and misconduct within the FBI.1  Simply put, 
such misconduct is beyond unacceptable and must be put to an end.   

In my letter, I noted that after the Associated Press news article, Under the Rug: Sexual 
Misconduct Shakes the FBI’s Senior Ranks, the Justice Department reviewed the FBI’s 
disciplinary case database, Javelin.2  That review produced a Justice Department document titled 
“Retirements and Resignations During Unwelcome Sexual Conduct Adjudications.”3  The 
document noted that the Justice Department reviewed 8,686 summaries in Javelin and found that 
from 2004 to December 23, 2020, “665 FBI employees, including 45 [Senior Executive Service]-
level employees have retired or resigned following an FBI or [Justice Department Office of 
Inspector General] investigation into alleged misconduct, but prior to [the Office of Professional 
Responsibility’s] issuance of a final disciplinary letter.”4  It’s been alleged to my office that the 
data involved an element of sexual misconduct, which comports with the purpose of the Javelin 
review that was done because of the Associated Press article.  That document is attached to this 
letter. 

Importantly, the document notes, “[t]his dataset does not include retirements or 
resignations which occurred during an ongoing misconduct investigation or prior to the initiation 
of a formal investigation.”5  In other words, it appears that the number of retirements and 
resignations could be much higher than 665 individuals.  The document also notes that one of the 
cases referenced in the Associated Press article isn’t referenced in the FBI’s disciplinary case 
precedent, which indicates the Javelin database might have incomplete data.6 

                                                           
1 Although the documents do not delineate between male and female employees who suffered under sexual misconduct, 
allegations provided to my office, as well as news reports cited in my October 5, 2022, letter make clear that female employees 
are the primary victims. 
2 Jim Mustian, Under the Rug: Sexual Misconduct Shakes FBI’s Senior Ranks, Associated Press (Dec. 10, 2020) 
https://apnews.com/article/fbi-sexual-misconduct-investigation-a0d33e4770acef8ff5f4a48f0267202c. 
3 Retirements and Resignations during Unwelcome Sexual Conduct Adjudications (December 23, 2020).  Attachment. 
4 Id.  
5 Id. 
6 According to the document, the Roger C. Stanton matter was not referenced in the disciplinary database. 
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The second document that I wrote about, “Inconsistent Adjudication of Non-Consensual 
Sexual Misconduct,” relates to Director Wray’s emailed directive on December 11, 2020, 
advising all employees about the FBI’s zero-policy stance on sexual harassment and sexual 
misconduct.7  That document notes the following concern, “[r]ecent sexual misconduct cases 
appear to show [the Office of Professional Responsibility’s] application of this directive has 
resulted in seemingly random penalties and disparate treatment, potentially compromising the 
consistency, fairness, and due process of the FBI’s disciplinary system.”8  In other words, the 
same misconduct can result in very different penalties with “lower-graded” employees receiving 
harsher penalties than senior employees.9  The document further notes that “[t]his inconsistency 
has compounded since Director Wray’s December 2020 email.”10  That document is also 
attached to this letter.  

In response to media inquiries, the FBI “told [the] Associated Press it intended to respond 
to the oversight committee first” instead of directly addressing the data with the public.11  To 
date, the Justice Department and FBI have failed to provide any response to my October 5, 2022, 
letter. 

FBI employees should not have to suffer under daily abuse and misconduct by their 
colleagues and supervisors.  Accordingly, I am requesting that you immediately open a review of 
the Justice Department’s and FBI’s management of sexual misconduct claims, including how 
many employees who separated from federal service before the resolution of an investigation 
received the required notice in their personnel file,12 the apparent failure to ensure the Javelin 
database includes full and complete data, and the unequal application of disciplinary rules.    

Sincerely, 
 

 
Charles E. Grassley    
Ranking Member  

                            Committee on the Judiciary 
cc: 

The Honorable Richard Durbin 
Chairman 
Committee on the Judiciary 

                                                           
7 Inconsistent Adjudication of Non-Consensual Sexual Misconduct (January 6, 2022).  Attachment.   
8 Id.  
9 Id. 
10 The 2022 document notes that since December 2020, OPR has substantiated 12 cases related to sexual misconduct: 6 cases 
were adjudicated under Offense Code 5.20; all 6 employees ranged from GS-09 to GS-13, 1 GS-11 was a supervisor; 3 
employees were dismissed, and 3 employees received suspensions between 14 and 30 days.  Regarding the employee who 
received a 30-day suspension, “OPR initially imposed a 10-day suspension, which it inexplicably increased after being directed 
by the EAD, HRB to remove impermissible derogatory information.”  The document notes that 6 cases were adjudicated under 
Offense Code 5.22; 5 employees ranged from GS-13 to GS-15, 1 employee was Senior Executive Service (4 employees were 
supervisors).  All 6 employees received suspensions between 7 and 30 days; no employees were dismissed.  One employee also 
violated Offense Code 5.21 and received a 10 day suspension that was reduced to 5 days on appeal. 
11 Eric Tucker and Jim Mustian, Whistleblower: 665 left FBI over misconduct in two decades, Associated Press (Oct. 6, 2022) 
https://apnews.com/article/business-personnel-sexual-misconduct-chuck-grassley-merrick-garland-
9ca9ea18036814bdf12e8c62a20e08d9  
12 See 5 U.S.C. § 3322. 
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